
UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK

FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION,

ESSEX MARKETING GROUP, INC.,
a New York corporation;

MANHATTAN VENDING, LLC,
a New York limited liability company;

WESTBROOK MARKETING GROUP, INC.,
aNew York corporation;

m: L<Je (., hC...J.,
(t THI80RDER IS TO BEMAILEDB.fc!..O .....4T.CM.
"fOAlJ;,COUNSEL IMMEDIATELY UPON RECr::IPT. ()

CN. NO. 023415 (TC1')

STIPULATED TEMPORARY
RESTRAINING ORDER FOR
DEFENDANT
JACK G. SCHWARTZ

Defendants.

Plaintiff,

v.

HENRY SANCHEZ, individually and
as an officer or director of one
or more ofthe above corporations
and/or as a member ofone or more ofthe
above limited liability companies;

JACK G. SCHWARTZ, individually and
as an officer or director of one or more or
the above corporations and/or as a member
ofone or more of the above the limited
liability companies; and

RICHARD J. GUADAGNO, aIkIa Rich Dano,
Rich Guadano and Richard Guadago,
individually and as an officer or director
of one or more of the above corporations
and/or as a member of one or more ofthe

)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)

WESTBROOK MARKETING ASSOCIATES, LLC, )
a Delaware limited liability company; )

)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)

--------------)





business opportunities to consumers nationwide, in violation ofSection 5 of the FTC Act, 15

U.S.C. § 45 and the Franchise Rule, 16 C.F.R. Part 436. Defendant denies these assertions.

3. Plaintiff asserts that no security is required ofany agency of the United States for issuance

ofarestTaining order. Fed. R. Civ. P. 65(c).

ORDER

Definitions
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I. PROHIBITED BUSINESS ACTIVITIES

IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED that, in connection with the advertising, promoting,

offering for sale, or sale ofany business venture, subject to this Courts' Order sealing these

proceedings, Defendant is hereby temporarily restrained and enjoined from:

A. Falsely representing, expressly or by implication, either orally or in writing, any

material fact, including but not limited to the following:

I. the income, profits, or sales volume likely to be achieved; and

2. that he will deliver the vending machines within the agreed upon time or

allow purchasers to cancel their contracts; and

B. Violating or assisting others to violate any provision of the Franchise Rule,

16 C.F.R. Part 436, including but not limited to:

1. failing to provide any potential franchisee with a complete and accurate

disclosure document within the times stated in the Franchise Rule,

16 C.F.R. § 436.1(a);

2. failing to provide any potential franchisee with an earnings claim

document when any earnings claim is made, as required by the Franchise

Rule, 16 C.F.R. § 436.1 (b)-(e); and

3. failing to disclose, in immediate conjunction with any earnings claim, the

material basis for the claim (or the lack of such basis) and a warning that

the earnings claim is only an estimate, as required by the Franchise Rule,

16 C.F.R. § 436.1(e)(3)-(4).
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II. ASSET FREEZE

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, except as otherwise provided in Subparagraph F, th00 12.1 121.9585 670.3i 0 80s(i Tm6IT)T43-0.035Defend0111 Tc 5.922 0 Tdn371ded
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F. Assets affected by this Section shall be limited to all of the assets of the

Defendant existing as of 4 p.m., June 13, 2002, including assets that are derived from or

traceable to assets existing as of 4 p.m., June 13, 2002.

The Defendant may each pay customary and ordinary living expenses not to exceed

$1,000, with the exception of rent, mortg0,Je,0.0023 Tc 3.32onexceed



Defendant, or has held, controlled or maintained custody ofany such asset ofDefendant, which

is the subject of this Order, at any time since January 1, 2000 shall:

A. Prohibit Defendant from withdrawing, removing, assigning, transferring,

pledging, encumbering, disbursing, dissipating, converting, selling, or otherwise disposing ofany

such assets, which are the subject of this Order, except as directed by further order ofthe Court;

B. Deny the Defendant access to any safe deposit box that is:

1. Titled in the name ofthe Defendant, either individually or jointly; or

2. Otherwise subject to access by the Defendant, either individually or

jointly;
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3. The identification ofany safe deposit box that is either titled in the name,



C. Hold and retain all transferred documents and assets and prevent any transfer,

disposition, or dissipation whatsoever of any such assets or funds; and

D. Provide counsel for the Commission with access to records and documents



VI. EXPEDITED DISCOVERY

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the Commission are granted leave to conduct certain

expedited discovery, and that, commencing with the time and date of this Order, in lieu of the

time periods, notice provisions, and other requirements ofRules 26,30,34, and 45 of the Federal

Rules ofCivil Procedure, expedited discovery shall proceed as follows:

A. Pursuant to Fed. R. Civ. P. 30, the Commission may take depositions upon oral

examination concerning the nature, location, status, and extent ofDefendant's assets; the status

and location ofdocuments reflecting Defendant's business transactions; and compliance with this

Order, on two (2) days notice of any such deposition. Deposition transcripts that have not been

signed by the witness may be used for purposes of the hearing on the Order to Show Cause Why

a Preliminary Injunction Should Not Issue.

Provided, that this Subparagraph permitting expedited deposition discovery concerning

the nature, location, status, and extent ofDefendant's assets, the status and location ofdocuments

reflecting Defendant's business transactions, and compliance with this Order, shall not be

construed in any manner to preclude Plaintiff's right to take subsequent depositions of the same

witnesses on the merits of this action.

Provided, filrther, that any deposition talcen pursuant to this Subparagraph is in addition

to, and not subject to, the presumptive limits on depositions set forth in Fed. R. Civ. P.

30(a)(2)(A).

B. Pursuant to Fed. R. Civ. P. 34(b), Defendant shall produce all documents

requested by the Commission within two (2) days of service ofsuch request, with production of
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documents made to the name and address listed in Paragraph XIII, or to such other person or

place as counsel for the Commission may direct in writing.

Provided, that, in the event any ofDefendant's documents have been removed from

Defendant's premises by, and are in the possession of another law enforcement or investigative

agency, the Commission may have immediate access to such documents for purposes of

inspection, indexing, and copying, subject to the agency consenting to access by the Commission.

Provided,jitrther, that this Sub-Paragraph shall extend to parties and non-parties.

VII. FINANCIAL REPORTS

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the Defendant, by June 21, 2002, shall prepare and

deliver to this Court, and to counsel for the Commission:

A. Completed financial statements on the forms attached to this Order as

Attachments D and E, for himself individually and for each business entity (whether or not

incorporated) under which he conducts business, or ofwhich he is an officer, and for each trust

ofwhich he is a trustee. The financial statements shall be accurate as of the date of entry of tins

Order; and

B. Upon request by Plaintiff, all current accountants' reports; all federal tax returns

filed since January 1, 1999; documents indicating title to real or personal property; other indicia

of ownership that are now in the Defendant's actual or constructive possession; and other of

Defendant's financial and banlc records requested by Plaintiff.
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XII. CONSUMER CREDIT REPORTS

IT IS



Commission chooses to serve Defendant via overnight delivery, the documents shall be delivered

so that they shall be received by Defendant at least twenty-four (24) hours prior to the hearing.

Consumer declarations previously filed as exhibits in support ofthis Order comply with the

disclosure requirements of this Paragraph.

C. Pursuant to Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 4(c)(2), the copies of this Order and

the initial pleadings and papers filed in this matter, including the Complaint and summonses,

maybe served by employees and agents of the Commission, by employees ofany state or other

federal law enforcement agency, including but not limited to the United States Marshal's Office

and the Federal Bureau ofInvestigation, and by agents of any process servers retained by the

Commission, upon any office of the Defendant, the Defendant, any financial or brokerage

institution, or any person or entity that may be in possession of any assets, property, or property

rights

by



service is via overnight delivery, the documents shall be delivered so that they shall be received

by all parties at least seventy-two (72) hours prior to the hearing.

Any party opposing a request to present live testimony shall file its written opposition,

and serve such motion on all parties, not less than twenty-four (24) hours prior to the hearing on

the Order to Show Cause Why a Preliminary Injunction Should Not Issue. Any party opposing a

request to present live testimony also shall file its witness list, and serve such witness list on all

parties, not less than twenty-four (24) hours prior to the hearing on the Order to Show Cause

Why a Preliminary Injunction Should Not Issue. For purposes of this Subparagraph, service shall

be by hand, by facsimile transmission, or by overnight delivery service. Provided, that ifservice

is via overnight delivery, the documents shall be delivered so that they shall be received by all

parties at least twenty-four (24) hours prior to the hearing.

XIV. DURATION OF TEMPORARY RESTRAINING ORDER

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the Temporary Restraining Order granted herein

shall remain in effect until this Courts' decision and order on Plaintiff's motion for a Preliminary

Injunction.

XV. ORDER TO SHOW CAUSE RE: PRELIMINARY INJUNCTION

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, pursuant to Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 65(b), that

Plaintiff's motion for a Preliminary Injunction is denied, without prejudice to renew and

returnable on Augusthours renewP4Pla-urnabNP l a i n t i f f ' satFUppgsfftP4Pla-urnabNPlaintiff's at at



XXVII. RETENTION OF JURISDICTION



Attachment F- Court Ordered Notice to Employees or Independent Contractors

As reqnired by a Federal District Court Order in the matter of Federal Trade

Commission v. Manhattan Vending, LLC et oJ. (Civil Action # 023415), any Manhattan

Vending employee or independent contractor who solicits business opportunity sales or

speaks to prospective business opportunity purchasers is hereby advised of the following:

The Federal District Court has issued an Order in the above matter that prohibits Jack G.

Schwartz and his employees and independent contractors, in connection with the advertising,

promoting, offering for sale, or sale of any business venture from:

A. Falsely representing, expressly or by implication, either orally or in writing, any

material fact, including but not limited to the following:

I. the income, profits, or sales volume likely to be achieved; and

2. that he will deliver the vending machines. within the agreed upon time or

allow purchasers to cancel their contracts; and

B. Violating or assisting others to violate any provision of the Franchise Rule,

16 C.F.R. Part 436, including but not limited to:

I. failing to provide any potential franchisee with a complete and accurate

disclosure document within the times stated in the Franchise Rule,

16 C.F.R. § 436.I(a);



·.\
.. failing to provide any potential franchisee with an earnings claim

• document when any earnings claim is made, as required by the Franchise

Rule, 16 C.F.R. § 436.1(b)-(e); and

3. failingto

t h e


